
 

 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

YECA GOVERNING BOARD 

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA 95695 

April 6, 2016 
2:00 P.M. Public Session 

 
 

ALL ITEMS ARE FOR ACTION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED WITH AN ASTERISK (*). 

    

 

1. Call to Order (2:00 PM)  

 

 

2. Public Comment * 

Speakers must state their name and city of residence for the record and limit their remarks 

to three minutes.  Members of the public audience may address the Governing Board on 

any item not on today’s agenda. No response is required and no action can be taken, 

however, the Governing Board may add the item to the agenda of a future meeting. 

 

 

3. Announcements 

a. Proclamation “National Public Safety Telecommunications Week April 10th - 16th” 

b. YECA 2015 Dispatcher of the Year “Nadia Wasilevsky” 

 

 

4. Approval of the Agenda  

 

 

5. Consent Agenda 

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by 

one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the 

Governing Board, member of the audience, or staff requests that the Governing Board 

remove an item. If an item is removed, it will be discussed in the order in which it appears 

on the Agenda. 

 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the March 2, 2016, Regular Meeting   Pg. - 1 

b. Operations Division Report   Pg. - 3 

c. Current Year Budget Status Update   Pg. - 5 

 

    

6. FY14/15 External Audit Presentation by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Scott 

Brunner, CPA 

a. FY14/15 Fiscal Audit Report - Attachment 

 



 

 

 

7. Human Resources/Administrative Coordinator Position Upgrade  

a. Human Resource/Administrative Coordinator Staff Summary   Pg. – 7  

b. Proposed Title Change: Fiscal & HR Administrator Position Description    Pg. - 8 

 

 

8. Dispatch Staffing Goal  

a. Dispatch Staffing Goal Summary   Pg. - 11   

 

 

9. Tri-Tech Inform ME Application for CAD iPhones, iPad, Android – Informational 

Only       

a. Staff Summary Background   Pg. - 14 

 

 

10. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting May 4, 2016 

 

 

11. Items for Future Agenda  

 

 

12. Adjournment 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was available for public review 

and posted on/or before April 1, 2016 on the bulletin board outside of the Yolo County Board 

of Supervisors Chambers, Erwin Meier Administration Center, 625 Court St., Woodland, 

California and on the agency website: http://www.yeca911.org/BoardCalendar2016.html 

 

        
   

              

**The meeting room is wheelchair accessible and disabled parking is available.  If you are a 

person with a disability and you need disability related accommodations to attend the meeting, 

please contact Marci Criste at (530) 666-8919 or (530) 666-8909 (fax).  Requests for 

accommodations must be made at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

** 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.yeca911.org/BoardCalendar2016.html


 

1 

 

Agenda Item: 5.a 

 

YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 

GOVERNING BOARD 
March 2, 2016 

MINUTES 
The YECA Governing Board of met on Wednesday, March 2, 2016 at the Yolo Emergency 

Communications Agency, 35 N Cottonwood Street, Woodland.  Chair Tom Lopez called the 

meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

  

PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Tom Lopez, Yolo County, Dan Bellini, City of 

Woodland, Tom McDonald, City of West Sacramento, John Donlevy, City of 

Winters, Gary Fredericksen, Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation, Dena Humphrey, YECA 

Executive Director.  

Entry No.2 

Public Comment 

None 

Entry No. 3 

Announcements 

The National Public Safety Telecommunications Week runs from April 10th-16th. 

Entry No. 4 

Minute Order No. 2016-03; Approval of Agenda 

The Agenda was approved as presented.  

MOTION: Fredericken SECOND: McDonald AYES: Lopez, Bellini, McDonald, Fredericksen, Donlevy. 

Entry No. 5 

Minute Order No. 2016-04; Approval of Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda was approved as presented. 

MOTION: Fredericken SECOND: McDonald AYES: Lopez, Bellini, McDonald, Fredericksen, Donlevy. 

 

Entry No.6 

Tri-Tech Inform ME Application for CAD iPhones, iPad, Android 

I.T. Manager Mike Bowler presented information on the Tri-Tech Inform ME Application.   

After some discussion the JPA Board Members suggested a Test Pilot Project to be done first, to 

evaluate if will be advantageous to Law & Fire Agencies before investing; and if pricing is 

concurrent per User or License, as well need pricing for over 100 devices.   I.T. Manager Mike 

Bowler will provide additional information at next Board Meeting.  

No action was taken, information only. 

 

 



 

2 

 

Entry No. 7 

Member Agency Cost Model Formula Summary  
Executive Director Dena Humphrey presented her research and provided other cost formulas for 

consideration.  Board Members agreed, due to time constraints, to remain with YECA’s current 

Standard cost formula for allocation for upcoming Budget FY16/17.  Board also agreed to have 

discussions throughout the upcoming fiscal year in revising formula allocations for member 

agencies for future Budgets.  

 

No action was taken, information only. 

Entry No. 8 

Minute Order No. 2016-05; Approval FY16/17 Budget 

FY16/17 Base Budget, CIP, Position Table and Additional Costs and Fund Balance was approved 

as presented. 

MOTION: Bellini SECOND: Fredericksen AYES: Lopez, Bellini, McDonald, Fredericksen, Donlevy. 

Entry No. 9 

Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting April 6, 2016.  

Entry No. 10 

Items for Future Agenda: 

a. FY14/15 External Audit Presentation 

b. HR Coordinator Position Description 

c. Staffing Goal 

d. Tri-Tech Inform ME Application for CAD iPhones, iPad, Android-Informational  

 

Meeting was adjourned at 2:27 p.m. 

Minutes submitted by: Eloise Austin Sr. Admin Specialist II  

     for Marci Criste, Recording Secretary    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item:  5.b 

Date:             April 6, 2016  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Executive Director 

From:  Karen Avara, Operations Manager 

Subject: Operations Division Report 

Recommendation:  No action required; information only. 

Summary:  Operations staff is currently engaged in the following: 

 Staffing: 

We have started a list of eligible applicants, testing and interviewing is still in progress 

anticipating an academy start date September 2016. 

 

 OPST: 

We greatly appreciate the bronze level sponsorship from the Woodland Peace Officers 

Association.  

 

 Public Safety Telecommunications Week: 

April 10th – 16th has been designated as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week, 

we have lots of fun activities planned for our Dispatchers to show them they are 

appreciated.  

 

 Internal Affairs: February 2016-March 2016 

1. Grievances: None 

2. Complaints: None 

3. Commendations: One 

Night shift crew were recognized for their teamwork during a busy shift. 

 

 Monthly Gold Board Employee Recognition: 

February 2016: 

Diana Wilson is the lucky winner for February, Diana was recognized for jumping in to 

assist during a Woodland vehicle pursuit.  

 

Krista Ralph, Chris Buck, Laura Swink, Maria Bigham, Kim Lindsay, Mike Bowler, 

Charles Keasler, Billy Keen, Craig Priester, Traci Fitzsimmons, Elaine Savage-

Helphingstine, Stephanie Taylor, Maria Roa, Scott Fletcher, and Tammy Leggins were all 

recognized for doing a great job.  

 

 



 

4 

 

Statistical Information: 

 Monthly Phone Statistics:  

Month  9-1-1   Non-Emergency Outgoing Total 

 February 4,370  19,602   5,079  29,051 

 

  

 Monthly CAD Events: 

Included in “Other” category is AMR, Animal Control, All Public Works, County 

Maintenance, Social Services, Environmental Health, and Public Guardian.  

Month  Law  Fire  Other 

February 13,669  2,187  786  

  

 Confidential Records Requests: 

Month  # of Requests 

January 137 

 

 



 

5 

 

YECA BUDGET MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

2015 / 2016    As of 3/28/16

   8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

Line item JUL-15 AUG-15 SEPT-15 OCT-15 NOV-15 DEC-15 JAN-16 FEB-16 MAR-16 APR-16 MAY-16 JUN-16

360 360-1 ADMINISTRATION

Appropriations 2,305,019$         2,305,019$         2,305,019$         2,305,019$        2,305,019$         2,305,019$      2,305,019$         2,305,019$         2,305,019$         2,305,019$         2,305,019$       2,305,019$    

Expenditures 36,855$             130,248$            140,010$            653,385$           733,311$            896,208$         999,467.90$       1,125,686$         1,210,774$         -$                      -$                    -$                 

Percent Expended 2% 6% 6% 28% 32% 39% 43% 49% 53% 0% 0% 0%

  

360 360-2 OPERATIONS - DISPATCH

Appropriations 3,944,824$         3,944,824$         3,944,824$         3,944,824$        3,944,824$         3,944,824$      3,944,824$         3,944,824$         3,944,824$         3,944,824$         3,944,824$       3,944,824$    

Expenditures 235,299$            464,253$            601,682$            1,338,327$        1,566,883$         1,844,018$      2,096,097$         2,356,056$         2,542,884$         -$                      -$                    -$                 

Percent Expended 6% 12% 15% 34% 40% 47% 53% 60% 64% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL for all budget units - B/U 360-1 Administration; 360-2 Operations Dispatch; 

Appropriations 6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$        6,249,843$         6,249,843$      6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$       6,249,843$    

Expenditures 272,155$           594,501$           741,693$           1,991,713$        2,300,194$        2,740,226$      3,095,564$        3,481,742$        3,753,658$        -$                      -$                    -$                

Unencumbered 5,974,115$        5,651,891$        5,504,938$        4,255,146$        3,949,649$        3,509,617$      3,154,279$        2,768,101$        2,496,185$        6,249,843$        6,249,843$       6,249,843$   

Percent Expended 4% 10% 12% 32% 37% 44% 50% 56% 60% 0% 0% 0%

Estimated Revenue 6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$        6,249,843$         6,249,843$      6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$         6,249,843$       6,249,843$    

Realized Revenue 276$                  426$                  10,530$             1,966,324$        2,955,194$         2,955,471$      2,956,854$         4,059,388$         4,475,195$         -$                      -$                    -$                 

Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 31% 47% 47% 47% 65% 72% 0% 0% 0%

360 360-3 RAD RADIO PROJECT  

Appropriations         55,000$             55,000$             55,000$             55,000$             55,000$                    

Expenditures -$                      -$                      -$                      54,124$             55,000$             -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                 

Unencumbered 55,000$             55,000$             55,000$             876$                 -$                       -$                           
Percent Expended 0% 0% 0% 98% 100%        

Estimated Revenue    55,000$             55,000$             55,000$             55,000$             55,000$                    
Realized Revenue -$                      -$                      -$                      54,124$             55,000$             -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                 

Unrealized Revenue 55,000$             55,000$             55,000$             876$                 -$                        -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                 
Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 98% 100%        

360 360-3 FY13 HSG FY13  

Estimated Revenue    25,658$             25,658$             25,658$             25,658$             25,658$             25,658$           25,658$             25,658$             -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                 

(Cameras) Realized Revenue (25,658)$            (25,658)$            (25,658)$            (25,658)$            (25,658)$            (25,658)$          (25,658)$            25,721$             -$                   -$                   -$                           -$                  

Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

360 360-3 FY14 HSG FY14  

Appropriations         18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$           18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             186,588$            18,658$            18,688$        

(Cameras @ 4 Sites) Expenditures -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                     9,637$               9,637$             9,637$               -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                           -$                      

Percent Expended 0% 0% 0% 0% 52% 52% 52% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Estimated Revenue    18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$           18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$             18,658$            18,658$        

Realized Revenue -$                      -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                   -$                -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                   -$                           -$                  

Percent Realized 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

HSG Grant

 

BofA Capital Lease

HSG Grant

Agenda Item:  5.c 

 



 

6 

 

Agenda Item:  6.a 

 

 

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

Agenda Item:  7.a 

 

Date:  April 6, 2016  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Executive Director  

Subject: Administrative & Human Resources Coordinator Position  

Summary: 

 

The current job description for the Administrative & Human Resource Coordinator is to oversee 

YECA’s various human resource programs and to provide highly specialized administrative 

support duties.  After reviewing the job description and assessing the needs of the agency, it’s 

apparent an accounting and payroll background is needed in this position.  The agency is preparing 

for a retirement for this position in a couple of months and is recommending to upgrade this 

position to include an accounting and payroll aspect.     

The need has risen over the last 18 months due to more accounting and payroll services no longer 

being provided by the County.  YECA has absorbed the duties in the handling of journal entries for 

capital assets, preparing the agency’s financials, trial balance audit adjustments, accrual 

adjustments, appropriation transfers, long term debt journal entries, processing payroll, and 

contracting out for the annual audits.  With these additional accounting and payroll duties and past 

external audits, it’s become apparent staff oversight with accounting expertise is needed.     

The oversite with payroll has become critical with reviews and monthly reconciling.  Salaries and 

benefits represents 77% of operating expenses or $4M.  As this is the largest expense for the 

agency a higher priority should be set to include an accounting skillset.  Another critical impact to 

the agency has been the change with the financial system administered by the County.  This has 

required even more oversight, as the agency has not had access to the system since October 2015.  

The only visibility to the agency’s financial standing has been by limited access of reports.  The 

ability to process claims, journal entries, or deposit revenue is currently being handled by County 

staff, who is handling an unusual high volume of transactions from the other agencies that can lead 

to potential errors.  The County has not been able to commit to a timeframe when system assess 

will return to the Special Districts and JPA’s.                  

The modified position would continue to handle the human resources programs and oversee 

accounting, payroll, and CalPERS reporting functions for 40+ employees.  To acquire these 

additional skillsets and experience would require an increase to the current monthly salary of 

$4,416 - $5,423 to a monthly of $6,188-$7,167.  The salary increase would be absorbed in the 

approved salary budget.      

 

 

 



 

8 

 

Agenda Item:  7.b 

 

YECA               Position Description 
Position:   

Fiscal/Human Resources Administrator  

Position Number:   

Department:  YECA FSLA:  Exempt 

Reports to:  Executive Director Salary Grade:  118 

Summary 

 

Provides professional administration and technical assistance in the development, 

administration, and implementation of YECA’s human resource programs, including 

recruitment, examination, compensation, salary, benefits, risk management, and overseeing 

governmental accounting functions. 

 

Plans and coordinates the administrative aspects of projects and programs, regular 

communication with external organizations, office systems, and procedures, research, 

electronic record keeping.  Exercises coordination and supervises clerical staff.   

 

Distinguishing Characteristics 

 

This position is responsible for overseeing YECA’s human resource programs and 

accounting/personnel systems.  Incumbents in this position report directly to the Executive 

Director.   

 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities 

 

 Oversees or participates in the posting, balancing, and reconciliation of the general 

ledger; Direct and/or participate in the entry of automated payroll system and personnel 

system; audits and reconciles payroll documents; makes complex or difficult adjustment 

entries and transfers of appropriations and accruals; works with County Financial staff to 

assure timely processing of transactions. 

 

 Oversees or prepares a variety of detailed accounting, financial statements or reports; 

works with external auditors during audits and resolves accounting problems in the 

process 

 

 Assists the Executive Director with development of budget proposals.  Oversees and 

organizes approved budgets, transaction records, and audit trails, including those for 

special projects/grants.  

 Plans and conducts recruitment, prepares job announcements, application supplements, 

and advertising of job opportunities; performance tests; reviews and screens employment 

applications; determines and monitors eligibility list certification.  Serves as the initial 

contact in the organization for inquiries on employment as well as new employee 

orientation.  



 

9 

 

 Conducts classification and organization studies; develops and revises classification 

specifications.  Conducts pay and benefits surveys, analyzes and presents salary data and 

related recommendations.   

 Perform administrative work related to employee benefits programs including insurance, 

leave, retirement, incentive pays, deferred compensation, and employee assistance 

programs.  Initiates and responds to a variety of surveys, correspondence, and reports; 

provides administrative support to the labor negotiation team; ensures accuracy of 

employee compensation and benefits, personnel transactions and salary schedule data.   

 

 Participates in the administration of the risk management functions and coordinates and 

manages Workers’ Compensation claims.  

 Designs, improves, standardizes, and installs forms, layouts, procedures, work methods, 

controls, filing and recording systems, etc., to increase efficiency of administrative 

support operations.  Ensures that mandated files and filing systems are up-to-date. 

 

 Provide direction, training, guidance, and leadership to clerical staff; plans, organizes, 

and coordinates work activities; prepares work priorities, schedules, and routines; 

expedites workflow; reviews work for accuracy, completeness, conformance to policies 

and procedures and conducts performance evaluations.   

 

 Identify opportunities for improvement in the current policies, procedures, and systems; 

develop recommendations for changes; implement modifications to the program, 

policies, and/or procedures as appropriate.  

 

 Processes and/or provides support, often of confidential or sensitive nature to the 

Executive Director with considerable dealings with outside agencies and customers, both 

individuals and groups.  

 

 Maintains YECA personnel files. 

 

 Performs other duties as assigned that support the overall objective of the position. 

 

Qualifications 

 

 Knowledge and Skills 

The position requires a general and governmental accounting theory, principles and 

practices and their application to a wide variety of accounting transactions; application and 

operation of computerized accounting systems and spreadsheets; auditing principles, and 

techniques. General knowledge or ability to grasp principles and practices of public human 

resources administration including methods and techniques used in recruitment and 

selection, classification, salary administration, risk management.  Applicable federal, state, 

and local laws regulations, records retention management, ordinances and policies of 

governing agencies.  Considerable knowledge of effective use of personal computer-based 

systems in an office environment. Requires specific, advanced skill in word processing, 

spreadsheet applications, presentation graphics, electronic filing sufficient to train others 



 

10 

 

and perform basic troubleshooting of problems.  Requires a strong working knowledge of 

general ledger record keeping.  Requires sufficient knowledge of and skill at applying 

English grammar and composition, and spelling to business and/or legal formats.   

 

 Abilities 

Requires the ability to independently perform all of the duties of the position.  Must be able 

to learn, interpret, explain and apply knowledge of the agency, its operations, programs, 

functions, special terminology, and labor agreements.  Requires the ability to prepare 

spreadsheets, enter, import, and export data to and from databases.  Requires the ability to 

plan, organize and prioritize work in order to meet schedules and timelines; know laws, 

regulations and codes; observe performance and evaluate staff; problem solve related issues; 

remember various rules, policies and procedures; explain and interpret policy.   

 

 Competencies  

To perform the job successfully, an individual should demonstrate the following 

competencies Analytical - Synthesizes complex or diverse information; collects and 

researches data; designs work flows and procedures. Continuous Learning - Pursues training 

and development opportunities; strives to continuously build knowledge and skills; shares 

expertise with others; Job Knowledge - keeps abreast of current developments; requires 

minimal supervision; displays understanding of how job relates to others; uses resources 

effectively. Problem Solving - Identifies and resolves problems in a timely manner; gathers 

and analyzes information skillfully. Oral Communication - Listens and gets clarification. 

Quality Management - Demonstrates accuracy and thoroughness. Dependability - Follows 

instructions, responds to management direction; takes responsibility for own actions; keeps 

commitments. 

 

 Physical Abilities 

This class includes administrative positions requiring light physical effort which may include 

frequent lifting of up to ten pounds and occasional lifting of up to twenty-five pounds.  Some 

bending and stooping, and/or squatting may be required.  Considerable walking may be 

involved.  Sufficient hand/eye coordination and manual dexterity to keyboard at a rate (about 

35 wpm); sufficient visual acuity to recognize words letters and numbers.  Sufficient auditory 

acuity to carry on conversations over the phone and in person.    

 

 Education and Experience 

Bachelor's degree from four-year college or university in Business or Accounting; or six 

years related experience and/or training; or equivalent combination of education and 

experience with four or more years in governmental accounting 

 

 Licenses and Certificates 

May require a valid driver’s license.  

 

 Working Conditions 

Work is performed indoors where minimal safety considerations exist.  

 

 



 

11 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Agenda Item:  8.a 

Date:  April 6, 2016  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:   Dena Humphrey, Executive Director  

Subject: Staffing Goals Summary – Informational Only   

Summary: 

 

In 2014, the JPA Board recognized the need to increase staffing levels to meet current operations.  

In doing so, 4 Dispatch positions were increased.  The Board requested at a later time to return 

with overall staffing goals that fully addresses the needs of the Agency.  The current authorized 

Dispatch positions for FY16/17 is 36 FTE’s.  There are currently 7 Dispatchers in training and 5 

positions to fill in September.  Once these 12 positions are trained, the 36 FTE’s are expected to 

satisfy operational demands.  

While preparing for the staffing goals, a set of priorities were developed.  These priorities were set 

in response to objectives of building a more efficient, effective, and responsive workforce.   

Dispatch Operations Priorities: 

1. Improve Employee Training Program – (fill Training Coordinator Position)   

2. Meet Field Service Demands   

3. Balance Dispatcher Time Spent on Answering 911-Calls    

4. Succession Planning for Upcoming Retirements 
 

 

The creation of the Operations Staffing Goals took these priorities along with a look of historical 

needs and future projections.  The current authorized positions of 36 FTE’s meet an industry 

standards recommendation by 88% for staffing levels.  This model used from the National 

Emergency Number Association (NENA) took a variety of factors into consideration e.g., 

minimum positions required, NCIC/State/Local queries, CAD Incident volume, call processing 

times, phone call volume, attrition rates, along with employee availability with vacation and sick 

time.  In response to the identified Dispatch Operations priorities to provide better support to 

YECA’s member agencies, the following key positions were identified:   
 

Proposed Dispatch Staffing Goals: 

1. Training Coordinator Position 

2. Dispatch Retirement Backfill 

3. Dispatch Assistants  
 

   

 

 

 



 

12 

 

1.  Training Coordinator Position 

This was a position that was staffed before the economic downfall and never replaced.  The 

training program and oversight was divided up amongst Lead Dispatchers and Supervisors.  The 

universal oversight to a de-centralized model has lost its effective approach of addressing critical 

training needs for Law, Fire, and EMD.  This position is critical for ensuring dispatch staff of 36 

employees are compliant with P.O.S.T training requirements of 24 hours per employee, another 24 

hours for EMD medical dispatch certification requirements, CPR certifications, EMD quality 

assurance requirement reviews, along with direct in-service training for 200+ Law and Fire 

policies, frequent CAD updates, CLETS, and radio. 

 

By having a viable training program overseen by one person would allow for better accountability, 

consistency, and effectiveness. The direct benefits to member agencies would see a greater service 

level to field units and citizens, by improving customer service and responsiveness. With the ever 

changing technology and resources, the ability to respond to the high emergency demands has 

placed a greater need for having a more robust training program in place.         

 

2.  Dispatch Retirement Backfill Positions    

The agency for the first time will begin to see retirements in the next couple of years.  The agency 

has 3 Dispatchers eligible to retire today and another 3 eligible to retire in 2 years.  The current 

years of service within the Dispatcher class: 3 employees (25-31 years), 7 employees (15-25 

years), 11 employees (10-15 years), 10 employees (10 years or less). The senior class of 

Dispatchers will need to be planned well to mitigate staffing shortages considering the length of 

training.   

 

3.  Dispatch Assistants Position   

The Public Safety Dispatcher primary duty is to dispatch incidents, process field unit requests, 

CLETS inquiries, and maintain unit status. Dispatchers also answers emergency and non-

emergency calls, some of which require EMD instructions for conditions that range from minor 

medical symptoms to life saving CPR instructions. Answering these calls can alter the focus of the 

Dispatcher with their attention being split between the caller and field units. This adversely 

impacts the dispatcher’s ability to react promptly to field unit needs, and it lessens the Dispatcher 

proficiency causing delays in processing requests, and increases the likelihood that a field unit 

could be asked to “stand by.”  

 

When on duty, the Dispatch Assistant, commonly known as Call Taker, can absorb 30-40 % of 

those incoming calls, allowing the Dispatcher to be more attentive to the radio activity.  Dispatch 

Assistants can also contribute to Dispatcher proficiency by filling tow truck requests, calling back 

reporting parties, confirming warrants, etc. In essence, every telephone call either received or 

placed by a Dispatch Assistant rather than a Dispatcher contributes to the focus and service to the 

field unit. 

 

Another consideration is if city growth continues and call volume increases continue there will be 

a need to increase these positions in the future to respond effectively and to limit Dispatcher time 

spent on answering phones for field unit needs.  Over the last five years, CAD calls for service 

have increased by 10% or 22,000 CFS, and incoming phone calls have increased by 9% or 25,000 

calls.  

 



 

13 

 

The trend chart below shows the continued increases: 

 

  

 

The other component to consider for these positions is the onset of Next Generation 911 (NG911) 

that will move communications centers across America to an IP-based platform.  This technology 

will create a faster method of delivering data to Dispatch Centers in response to technology used 

by the public.  The digital information (e.g., voice, photos, video, text messaging) will flow 

through the centers to first responders.  Additional staffing to process the incoming digital 

information may also need to be considered at the time of implementation.     

 

The future staffing goals are presented in response to the priorities of ultimately meeting field 

service demands, maintaining a highly skilled workforce, and providing exceptional lifesaving 

emergency service to the citizens.       

 

One alternative to the Training Coordinator position would entail converting an existing 

Supervisor position to the Training Coordinator.  This would create a cost savings for the position.  

However, would create some gaps in supervision and change the span of control from 5 employees 

to 10 employees per Supervisor.  This would also result in some shifts without supervisory support 

covering the 24/7 operations from the remaining 3 Supervisors.            

 

 

 

170,000

175,000

180,000

185,000

190,000

195,000

200,000

205,000

210,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

CAD CFS

220,000

225,000

230,000

235,000

240,000

245,000

250,000

255,000

260,000

265,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Incoming Phone Calls

Year Cost Qty Position Notes 

FY17/18 $110k 1 FTE Training Coordinator 

FY17/18 $130k 2 FTE Retirement Backfill 

FY19/20 $120k 2 FTE Dispatch Assistants 

 *if needed based on City & County growth, 

NextGen Text to 911

Proposed Dispatch Operations Staffing Goals 



 

14 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Agenda Item: 9.a  

Date:  Apr 6, 2016 

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Agency Manager 

From:  Mike Bowler, IT Manager 

Subject: Tri Tech Inform ME Application 

Summary:    

Inform ME is an application developed by Tri Tech that allows users to access many Mobile-like 

functions from an iPad. Inform ME is being developed for iPhones and Android devices as well, 

and these versions are expected to be available later this year.  

While the features of Inform ME are similar to those in the Inform Mobile application that is used 

in the Law and Fire vehicles, Inform ME is a “work-in-progress” that developers are continuing to 

add features and functions on an ongoing basis. 

Some of the functionality listed in the Tri Tech data sheet, such as the ability to perform records 

checks or the ability for the application to run on iPhones and Android devices, are not yet 

available in the current version release. 

One recently added feature, announced March 28th, is the ability to run Inform ME on iPads 

running iOS 9.0 to 9.2.   Licensing for Inform ME is on a per-device basis, and each individual 

device is assigned a license number by the Inform ME server. Inform ME licenses are sold in 

blocks of 1 - 40, 41 - 100, and 101 - 250.  

Introductory pricing for Inform ME was available through December 31, 2015. YECA asked for 

and received an extension of this pricing because the YECA CAD was only recently upgraded to 

the level required to support Inform ME. 

 

The introductory pricing, shown below, expires May 2, 2016. YECA did not receive introductory 

pricing for licensing in excess of 100 devices. 

License Count One-time cost Annual, recurring cost 

1 - 40 Devices $ 7,700.00 $ 5,300.00 

41 – 100 Devices $ 15,200.00 $ 12,000.00 

 

Standard Inform ME Pricing is listed below: 

License Count One-time cost Annual, recurring cost 

1 - 40 Devices $ 34,300.00 $ 5,300.00 

41 – 100 Devices $ 75,000.00 $ 12,000.00 

101 – 250 Devices $137,600.00 $22,000.00 



 

15 

 

YECA Staff respectfully seeks the Board’s direction with regard to implementing the Inform ME 

application. If direction to purchase is given, the initial, one-time licensing costs could be 

apportioned among the users opting to implement the system.  Invoices would be sent directly to 

member agencies for the upfront one-time cost, while the annual recurring cost would be absorbed 

in YECA’s budget.  

 

 





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Independent Auditor’s Reports, 
Basic Financial Statements, and  


Required Supplementary Information 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


Table of Contents 


Page(s) 


Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................ 1-2 


Basic Financial Statements: 


Statement of Net Position – Governmental Activities ..................................................................... 3 


Statement of Activities – Governmental Activities ......................................................................... 4 


Balance Sheet – General Fund ......................................................................................................... 5 


Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ............................................ 6 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in 
Fund Balance – General Fund ...................................................................................................... 7 


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities ............................................................... 8 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ..................................................................................... 9-26 


Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 


Schedule of YECA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ........................................ 27 


Schedule of YECA’s Pension Contributions ................................................................................. 28 


Schedule of Funding Progress for Other 
 Postemployment Benefits Plan ................................................................................................... 29 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund  ........................................................................... 30 


Notes to the Required Supplementary Information .................................................................. 31-32 


Other Report: 


Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ...................... 33-34 


Schedule of Current Year Findings ........................................................................................... 35-36 


Status of Prior Year Findings .................................................................................................... 37-39 







www.mgocpa.com


Certified   
Public 
Accountants 


Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816


Sacramento


Walnut Creek


San Francisco


Oakland


Los Angeles


Century City


Newport Beach


San Diego


1 


Independent Auditor’s Report 


Board of Directors  
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 


Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general 
fund of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise YECA’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  


Auditor’s Responsibility  


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 


Opinions 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of YECA, as of June 30, 
2015, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 







2 


Emphasis of Matter 


Change in Accounting Principles 


As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, effective July 1, 2014, YECA adopted the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – An Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 68. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 


Other Matters 


Required Supplementary Information 


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of 
YECA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, schedule of YECA’s pension contributions, 
schedule of funding progress for other postemployment benefits plan, and schedule of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance – budget and actual – General Fund on pages 28 through 33 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 


Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29, 2016 
on our consideration of YECA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering YECA’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  


Sacramento, California 
March 29, 2016 







BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 







ASSETS
Imprest cash 300$              
Cash in County Treasury 1,850,491      
Accounts receivable 121                
Due from other governments 26,153           
Prepaid expense 189,813         
Restricted assets:


Cash with fiscal agent 82,971           
Capital assets:


Depreciable, net 6,098,513      
Total Assets 8,248,362      


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 292,550         


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 113,207         
Accrued payroll 125,637         
Accrued interest 22,761           
Net OPEB obligation 411,691         
Net pension liability 2,379,173      
Long-term liabilities:


Due within one year 313,141         
Due in more than one year 2,669,620      


Total Liabilities 6,035,230      


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 722,030         


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,375,829      
Unrestricted (1,592,177)     


Total Net Position 1,783,652$    


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities


June 30, 2015


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
3







PROGRAM EXPENSES
Public safety - 911 communications


Salaries and employee benefits 3,623,438$    
Services and supplies 1,302,260      
Depreciation 236,987         


Interest on long-term debt 190,911         
Total Program Expenses 5,353,596      


PROGRAM REVENUES
Operating grants and contributions 5,326,277      
Capital grants and contributions 7,383             


Total Program Revenues 5,333,660      


Net Program Expense (19,936)          


GENERAL REVENUES
Interest 6,674             
Other 126,420         


Total General Revenues 133,094         


Change in Net Position 113,158         


Net Position - beginning of year, as reported 4,499,078      


Change in accounting principles (2,828,584)     


Net Position - beginning of year, as restated 1,670,494      


Net Position - end of year 1,783,652$    


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
4







ASSETS
Imprest cash 300$              
Cash in County Treasury 1,850,491      
Accounts receivable 121                
Due from other governments 26,153           
Prepaid items 189,813         
Restricted assets:


Cash with fiscal agent 82,971           
Total Assets 2,149,849$    


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:


Accounts payable 113,207$       
Accrued payroll 125,637         


Total Liabilities 238,844         


Fund Balance:
Nonspendable - prepaid items 189,813         
Restricted for capital projects 82,971           
Unassigned 1,638,221      


Total Fund Balance 1,911,005      


Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 2,149,849$    


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Balance Sheet
General Fund
June 30, 2015


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
5







Fund balance - General Fund 1,911,005$    


Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
 and, therefore, are not reported in the General Fund. 6,098,513      


Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in
 the General Fund. 292,550         


Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in
 the General Fund. (722,030)        


Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
 therefore, are not reported in the General Fund.


Net OPEB obligation (411,691)        
Net pension liability (2,379,173)     
Accrued interest (22,761)          
Capital lease (2,805,655)     
Compensated absences (177,106)        


Net position - Governmental Activities 1,783,652$    


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position


June 30, 2015


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
6







REVENUES
Intergovernmental:


State 7,383$           
Contributions 5,326,277      
Interest 6,674             
Other 126,420         


Total Revenues 5,466,754      


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 3,574,405      
Services and supplies 1,357,879      


Debt service:
Principal 216,781         
Interest 192,670         


Capital outlay 620,109         
Total Expenditures 5,961,844      


Change in Fund Balance (495,090)        


Fund Balance - beginning of year 2,406,095      


Fund Balance - end of year 1,911,005$    


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Change in Fund Balance - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
7







Change in fund balance - General Fund (495,090)$  


Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:


The General Fund reports capital outlay as expenditures.  However,
 in the statement of activities, the cost of those items is allocated
 over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Capital outlay 675,728$   
Depreciation expense (236,987)    438,741     


Repayment of long-term liabilities are expenditures in the General
 Fund, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 216,781     


Other expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current
 financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the General
 Fund.


Change in compensated absences (108)           
Change in net OPEB obligation (68,856)      
Change in net pension liability and related amounts 19,931       
Change in accrued interest 1,759         (47,274)      


Change in net position - Governmental Activities 113,158$   


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
8







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


9 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 


Reporting Entity 


The Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), was established June 21, 1988 by Agreement 
No. 88-133, which is a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (Agreement) pursuant to Government Code 
6500 et seq. 


YECA includes all operating activities considered to be a part of YECA.  YECA reviewed the criteria 
developed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its issuance of Statement No. 
14, which was amended by Statement No. 61, relating to the financial reporting entity to determine 
whether YECA is financially accountable for other entities.  YECA has determined that no other outside 
entity meets the above criteria, and therefore, no agency has been included as a component unit in 
YECA’s financial statements. 


The parties making up the Joint Powers Agency (JPA) are the County of Yolo and the cities of Woodland, 
West Sacramento, and Winters.  The parties each appoint members to the governing board of YECA. 


YECA was created to provide mutual benefits, such as cost savings and greater operational efficiency, to 
the county and the cities through the sharing of communication facilities, emergency services, and 
increased management control. 


Each party retains ownership of its radio frequencies, but allows the use of those frequencies by YECA. 


Under the Agreement, each party in YECA contributes to the budget of YECA.  These contributions are 
based on various formulas outlined in Section 9.2 of the JPA Agreement. 


Basis of Presentation and Accounting 


Government-Wide Statements 


The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the primary 
government (YECA).  These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. 


The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
YECA's governmental activity.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment.  Program revenues include grants and contributions, as well as contributions 
received from JPA members that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
YECA.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including investment income, are 
presented instead as general revenues. 


The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  Revenues from grants, 
entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


10 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 


Basis of Presentation and Accounting (Continued) 


Fund Financial Statements 


Separate financial statements are provided for the General Fund. YECA’s General Fund accounts for all 
of its financial resources and activities. The General Fund financial statements are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current 
period.  "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 
period.  YECA uses an availability period of 365 days for revenue recognition for its General Fund 
revenues. Those revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental revenues, contributions, and 
investment income. 


Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 


Nonexchange transactions, in which YECA gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations.  On a modified accrual basis, 
revenues from nonexchange transactions are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied and have met the 365-day availability criteria.  


Cash in County Treasury 


YECA maintains cash and investments with the Yolo County Treasurer (Treasurer) in a cash and 
investment pool.  On a quarterly basis, the Treasurer allocates interest to participants based upon their 
average daily balances.  Required disclosure information regarding the categorization of investments and 
other deposit and investment risk disclosures can be found in the County of Yolo's (County) 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The County’s financial statements may be obtained by 
contacting the County Auditor-Controller's office at 625 Court Street, Room 103, Woodland, California 
95776.  The Yolo County Treasury Oversight Committee oversees the Treasurer's investments and 
policies. 


YECA has no deposit or investment policy that addresses interest rate, credit, or custodial credit risk. 
Investments held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized 
cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.   


Cash with Fiscal Agent 


Cash with fiscal agent represents proceeds from debt related to YECA’s capital lease financing 
arrangement with Bank of America. Refer to Note 4 for more information relating to the debt issuance. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


11 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 


Due From Other Governments 


These amounts represent receivables from other governmental agencies.  Management believes its 
receivables to be fully collectible and, accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been 
established. 


Capital Assets 


Capital assets have been acquired for general operational purposes.  Assets purchased are recorded as 
expenditures in the General Fund and capitalized at cost or estimated cost where no historical records are 
available in the government-wide financial statements. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated 
fair market value on the date contributed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Capital assets, including 
intangible assets, are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 
years in the government-wide financial statements. 


Pensions 


For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and 
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 


GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used: 


Valuation Date:  June 30, 2013 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2014 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 


Compensated Absences 


Unused vacation leave and compensatory time off may be accumulated up to a specified maximum and is 
paid at the time employment with YECA is terminated.  YECA is not obligated to pay for unused sick 
leave if employment is terminated prior to retirement. 


The accumulated benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them.  In the normal 
course of business, compensated absences do not require the use of current financial resources as all 
payments of these accumulated benefits will be funded from appropriations of the year in which they are 
to be paid; therefore, the total liability is recorded in the government-wide financial statements only.  In 
accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is 
recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


12 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 


Fund Balance/Net Position 


Fund Balance 


The provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, established the following classification of fund balance: 


 Nonspendable Fund Balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.


 Restricted Fund Balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.


 Committed Fund Balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action by the entity’s “highest level of decision-making authority",
which YECA considers to be resolutions adopted by YECA’s Board of Directors.


 Assigned Fund Balance – includes amounts of fund balance that reflect YECA's intended use of
resources for specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed.


 Unassigned Fund Balance – includes resources in fund balance that cannot be classified into any
of the other categories.


YECA's spending priority is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned, and 
unassigned fund balance. 


Net Position 


Net position comprises the various net earnings from YECA’s revenues, expenses, and contributions of 
capital.  Net position is classified in the following three components: 


 Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and any related outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of
those assets.


 Restricted Net Position – Restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
related to those assets.


 Unrestricted Net Position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is YECA's policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 


Members' Contributions 


Each member of YECA contributes annually based on YECA's budget.  Members' contributions are 
determined by various formulas set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement.  Contributions are payable in 
quarterly installments before the first day of each quarter. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


13 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 


Estimates 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 


Implementation of New Pronouncements  


During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, YECA implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement 
No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 (collectively, the Statements).  The primary objective of the 
Statements is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions 
by establishing standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, 
deferred inflows of resources, and expenses.  It requires employers to report a net pension liability for the 
difference between the present value of projected pension benefits for past service and restricted resources 
held in trust for the payment of benefits.  The Statements identify the methods and assumptions that 
should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present 
value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. 


The net pension liability offset by the related deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2014 reduced 
YECA’s beginning net position by $2,828,584 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.   


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS  


Deposits held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at amortized cost 
plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.  As of June 30, 2015, YECA's total cash in the 
County of Yolo Treasury was $1,850,491. 


Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015, are classified in the accompanying statement of net position as 
follows: 


Cash in County Treasury 1,850,491$     
Imprest cash 300
Restricted assets - cash with fiscal agent:


Money market mutual funds 82,971            


Total Cash and Investments 1,933,762$     







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


14 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 


Investments Authorized by the California Government Code 


The table on the following page identifies the investment types that are authorized for YECA by the 
California Government Code.  The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government 
Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not 
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt 
agreements of the YECA, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code.  


Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity


Maximum 
Percentage of 


Portfolio*


Maximum 
Investment in 


One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years No limit No limit
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% No limit
Repurchase Agreements 1 year No limit No limit
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value No limit
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% No limit
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% No limit
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A No limit No limit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No limit No limit
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A No limit No limit


*Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.


Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 


Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather 
than the general provisions of the California Government Code.  The table below identifies the investment 
types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee.  The table also identifies certain provisions 
of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 


Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity


Maximum 
Percentage 
Allowed


Maximum 
Investment in  


One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None No limit No limit
U.S. Agency Securities None No limit No limit
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days No limit No limit
Commercial Paper 270 days No limit No limit
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A No limit No limit
Investment Contracts 30 years No limit No limit







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


15 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 


Interest Rate Risk 


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is 
to changes in market interest rates.  The weighted average maturity of the County’s external investment 
pool as of June 30, 2015 was 424 days.  The weighted average maturity of the investments held by fiscal 
agent as of June 30, 2015 was 37 days. 


Credit Risk 


Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization (Standard and Poor’s).  Presented below is the minimum rating required by the 
California Government Code, or debt agreements and the actual rating as of June 30, 2015 of YECA’s 
investments that are exposed to credit risk (the County’s external investment pool is not rated): 


Investment Type
Minimum 


Legal Rating
Rating as of 


June 30, 2015
Money market mutual funds A AAAm


Custodial Credit Risk 


Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party.  The California Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would 
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision 
for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made 
by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a 
depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of 
the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the 
public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 


As of June 30, 2015, YECA does not have any deposits with financial institutions.  As of June 30, 2015, 
YECA invested bond proceeds in the following investment types and were held by the same broker-dealer 
(counterparty) that was used by the YECA to buy the securities: 


Investment Type Amount
Money market mutual funds 82,971$        







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


16 


NOTE 3:  CAPITAL ASSETS 


A summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, is as follows: 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015


CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPRECIATED
  Construction in progress 3,330,217$     634,392$       (3,964,609)$   -$    


CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED
 Building and improvements 150,000  -   -  150,000   
 Equipment 4,093,131    3,994,539   -  8,087,670   
 Vehicles 40,520    -   -  40,520  
 Furniture and fixtures 117,627  11,406  -  129,033   


 Total capital assets, being depreciated 4,401,278    4,005,945   -  8,407,223   


LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
 Building and improvements (37,170)  (7,500)   -  (44,670)   
 Equipment (1,884,851)  (225,264)  -  (2,110,115)    
 Vehicles (40,520)  -   -  (40,520)   
 Furniture and fixtures (109,182)  (4,223)   -  (113,405)    


   Total accumulated depreciation (2,071,723)  (236,987)  -  (2,308,710)    
 Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 2,329,555    3,768,958   -  6,098,513   


   Governmental activities capital assets, net 5,659,772$    4,403,350$   (3,964,609)$  6,098,513$   


Depreciation expense was charged to the public safety - 911 communications function in the amount of 
$236,987 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 


NOTE 4:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 


The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: 


Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within


June 30, 2014 Additions Retirements June 30, 2015 One Year


Capital lease 3,022,436$    -$    (216,781)$      2,805,655$    224,588$       
Compensated absences 176,998      255,750     (255,642)    177,106  88,553      


Total Long-Term Liabilities 3,199,434$    255,750$      (472,423)$     2,982,761$   313,141$      







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


17 


NOTE 4:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 


On November 18, 2010, YECA and the County of Yolo as co-issuer, issued $3,724,000 in ARRA-
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds (the Bonds) to finance (and reimburse for prior 
expenditures related to) the expansion, refurbishment, improvement, and equipping of its regional 
emergency communications system.  Net proceeds, after the payment of issuance costs, were deposited 
with Deutsch Bank, acting as trustee.  Concurrently, YECA along with the County of Yolo as co-issuer, 
entered into a Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement with Bank of America to finance the lease 
purchase of emergency communications equipment.  Lease payments will be used to finance the 
repayment of the Bonds.  The Bonds provide for a Federal subsidy of 45% of the interest paid on the 
Bonds to the issuer. The interest rate on the lease is 6.49%, with a maturity date of November 18, 2025. 
To obtain the subsidy, YECA must file a claim with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) when an interest 
payment on the Bonds is made. 


Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2015, are as follows: 


Year Ending June 30, Payments
2016 403,064$          
2017 396,446           
2018 389,590           
2019 382,487           
2020 375,129           


2021-2025 1,755,646        
2026 163,690           


Total Future Lease Payments 3,866,052        
Less: Interest (1,060,397)       


Net Capital Lease 2,805,655$       


The carrying amount of the assets acquired under the capital lease totaled $3,495,482 at June 30, 2015, 
which is the cost of $3,670,546, net of accumulated depreciation of $175,064. 


NOTE 5:  PENSION PLANS 


General Information about the Pension Plans 


Plans Description – All of YECA’s qualified employees are eligible to participate in the YECA’s 
Miscellaneous Plan or PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan (Plans), cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit 
pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  A full 
description of the Plans regarding number of employees covered, benefit provisions, assumptions (for 
funding, but not accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in the June 30, 2013 
Annual Actuarial Valuation Report.  Details of the benefits provided can be obtained in Appendix B of 
the actuarial valuation reports.  These reports and CalPERS’ audited financial statements are publicly 
available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and 
Publications.   







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


18 


NOTE 5:  PENSION PLANS (Continued) 


General Information about the Pension Plans (Continued) 


The California Legislature passed and the Governor signed the “Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013” (PEPRA) on September 12, 2012.  PEPRA contained a number of provisions intended to reduce 
future pension obligations.  PEPRA primarily affects new pension plan members who are enrolled for the 
first time after December 2012.  Benefit provisions under the Plans and other requirements are established 
by State statute and YECA resolution. 


Benefits Provided – The benefits for the Plans are based on members’ years of services, age, final 
compensation, and benefit formula.  Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible 
members or beneficiaries.  Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after 
five years of credited service. 


The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015 are summarized as follows: 


Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013


Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 to 67 52 to 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of
 eligible compensation 1.426 to 2.418% 1.000 to 2.500%


Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees Retirement Law (PERL) requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Contributions are 
determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is 
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.   YECA is required to contribute the 
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.  For the 
measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the active employee contribution rate 
was 6.891% and 6.308% of annual pay and the average employer’s contribution rate was 12.662% and 
6.250% of annual payroll for the Miscellaneous Plan and PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan, respectively. 
Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.  It is the responsibility of YECA 
to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact due to any employer-paid member 
contributions or situations where members are paying a portion of the employer contribution. 


For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense were 
$265,769. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


19 


NOTE 5:  PENSION PLANS (Continued) 


Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 


As of June 30, 2015, YECA reported a liability of $2,379,173 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, using an annual actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures.  YECA’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on its 2013-14 total contributions relative to all 2013-14 
contributions.  At June 30, 2014, YECA’s proportion was 3.921%. 


For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, YECA recognized pension expense of $272,566.  At June 30, 
2015, YECA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 


Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources


YECA contributions subsequent
 to the measurement date 292,497$        -$          
Net difference between projected and actual
 earnings on pension plan investments -  675,081      
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 53    46,949  


Totals 292,550$        722,030$         


The $292,497 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from YECA 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ending June 30, 2016.  The $675,081 reported as deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions resulting from the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 
investments and the $46,949 reported as deferred inflows of resources and the $53 reported as deferred 
outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from adjustment due to differences in proportions will 
be recognized as pension expense as follows: 


Year Ending Deferred Inflows
June 30 (Outflows) of Resources


2016 185,518$               
2017 185,518            
2018 182,170            
2019 168,771            


Total 721,977$               







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


20 


NOTE 5:  PENSION PLANS (Continued) 


Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 


Actuarial Assumptions – For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (measurement date), the total 
pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2013 total pension liability.  The June 
30, 2013 and the June 30, 2014 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial method and 
assumptions: 


Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:


Discount Rate 7.50%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return


Mortality Rate Table (1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase


7.50% Net of Pension Plan Invesment and Administrative 
Expenses, includes Inflation


Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power 
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 
2.75% thereafter


(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data.  The table includes 20 year 
of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  For more details on this table, please 
refer to the 2014 experience study report.


All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of actuarial 
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and 
retirement rates.  The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS website under Forms and 
Publications. 


Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. To 
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate, CalPERS 
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the 
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. 
Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate 
calculation is not necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all plans in 
the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called 
“GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section. 


According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in 
this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 
basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. 
Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension 
liability. This difference was not material to the financial statements of YECA. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


21 


NOTE 5:  PENSION PLANS (Continued) 


Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 


CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability 
Management review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the 
discount rate will require CalPERS Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, 
CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 
calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of 
the difference in calculation until such time as it has changed its methodology. 


The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  


In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS staff took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows 
were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on 
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-
60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set 
by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for 
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return 
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one 
quarter of one percent. 


The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 


New Strategic Real Return Real Return


Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10 (1) Years 11+ (2)


Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0 0.99 2.43
Inflation Sensitive 6.0 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 12.0 6.83 6.95
Real Estate 11.0 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0 4.50 5.09
Liquidity 2.0 (0.55) (1.05)


(1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


22 


NOTE 5:  PENSION PLANS (Continued) 


Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 


Sensitivity of YECA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – 
The following presents the net pension liability as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) 
than the current rate: 


Discount Rate Current Discount Discount Rate
- 1% (6.50%) Rate (7.50%) + 1% (8.50%)


YECA's Proportionate Share
 of Plans' Net Pension Liability 3,998,628$         2,379,173$         1,035,179$         


Pension Plans Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the Plans’ fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. 


NOTE 6:  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 


YECA offers to each non-safety employee a 401A Money Purchase Plan (MPP) administered by the 
VALIC Retirement Services Company.  Each participant has an individual account with VALIC into 
which all contributions are recorded.  The participants are offered various investment options through the 
MPP and are allowed to invest moneys in their account, at their own discretion, among the options. 
YECA may amend, modify, or terminate the MPP, upon approval of such amendment, modification, or 
termination by YECA’s Board of Director’s approval.  Employees covered by the MPP are eligible to 
participate from the date of employment.  The MPP defines YECA contributions which range from 3-6 
percent of employees base salary based on the employees designated employee group.  Employee 
contributions to the MPP are not permitted.  Under the MPP each participant is 100 percent vested in the 
amounts credited to the participants account at all times.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, 
contributions paid to the MPP were $36,197.     







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


23 


NOTE 7:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)  


Plan Description 


YECA sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide postemployment health benefits to 
eligible retirees and their spouses through CalPERS (the Plan).  Benefit allowance provisions are 
established through resolution between YECA and three employee groups:  general, supervisor, and 
management.  The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 


Plan members include current retirees and active employees of YECA.  Eligible plan members are YECA 
employees who have retired from active employment with YECA and have five years of service credit 
with CalPERS.  There is not a minimum service period with YECA to be eligible for the retiree 
health/medical benefit.  The benefit allowance provides a lifetime allowance to eligible plan members and 
their surviving spouses, if applicable.  The benefit allowance is provided in conjunction with the MOU 
terms allowing retirees to continue their current health insurance which also covers active members. 


Funding Policy 


The contribution requirements of YECA are established and may be amended by YECA's Board of 
Directors.  For eligible plan members, YECA provides a maximum monthly benefit allowance of $253 
for general and supervisor members and $700 per month for management.  Any and all insurance 
premium costs incurred by retirees above the monthly benefit allowance are borne by the retiree. 
YECA’s actuarially determined contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was 5.3% based 
on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation.   


Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 


YECA's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities 
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  However, YECA contributes on a pay-as-
you-go basis, which for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to $50,244, or approximately 2.2% 
of payroll.  As a result of paying less than the ARC, YECA has a net OPEB obligation. 


The following table shows the components of YECA's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in YECA's net OPEB obligation.  


Annual Required Contribution 121,900$   
Interest on net OPEB obligation 12,600 
Adjustment to ARC (15,400)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 119,100 
Contributions made (50,244)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 68,856 
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 342,835 
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 411,691$   







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


24 


NOTE 7:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 


Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued) 


YECA's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation were as follows: 


Fiscal Year Ended:
Annual OPEB 


Cost
Amount 


Contributed


Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Cost 


Contributed
Net OPEB 
Obligation


June 30, 2013 115,892$       44,530$   38.42% 276,756$       
June 30, 2014 113,000  46,921  41.52% 342,835    
June 30, 2015 119,100  50,244  42.19% 411,691    


Funded Status and Funding Progress 


As of June 30, 2013, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits was $1,356,000, all of which was unfunded.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $2,243,000, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
to the covered payroll was 60.5 percent.  


The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer 
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the basic financial statements, will present multiyear trend information 
as its available, about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 


Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point.  The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce 
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.  







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


25 


NOTE 7:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued) 


In YECA’s June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used.  The 
actuarial assumption for asset valuation included a discount rate of 4.0%.  The actuarial assumption for 
medical costs increase between 8.0% and 8.3% for the year ending June 30, 2015, reduced by decrements 
to an ultimate rate of 5.0% after the year ending June 30, 2020.  Both rates include 3.0% general inflation. 
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a 
closed basis.  The amortization period at June 30, 2013 was 27 years. 


The benefit allowance was deemed a community rated plan and therefore, no implicit rate subsidy was 
determined in the actuarial valuation.   


NOTE 8:  RISK MANAGEMENT 


YECA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 


YECA participates in the Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Agency 
(YCPARMIA), a joint power agency (risk-sharing pool) made up of other governmental entities within 
the County.  YECA is covered for general and automobile, workers' compensation, property, pollution, 
fidelity, and cyber through YCPARMIA.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the California Joint 
Powers Insurance Agency (CALJPIA), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic 
general and automobile losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the CSAC Excess Insurance 
Authority (CSAC), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic workers’ 
compensation, property, and pollution losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the Fidelity and 
Deposit Company of Maryland (FDCM), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for 
catastrophic fidelity losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in Lloyd’s of London, YECA is provided 
with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic cyber losses.  Loss contingency reserves established by 
YCPARMIA are funded by contributions from member agencies. 


The annual contribution YCPARMIA charges to each agency is based upon its pro-rata share of excess 
insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk (losses) recognizing the deductible selected, claims 
adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs to operate the YCPARMIA.  Settled claims 
from these risks did not exceed coverage for the past three years.  YECA's deductible and maximum 
coverage are as follows: 


Coverage Deductible YCPARMIA CALJPIA CSAC FDCM Lloyd's
General and automobile 5,000$      500,000$     40,000,000$   -$    -$         -$     
Workers' compensation 1,000  500,000      -    50,000,000     -   -     
Property 1,000  25,000   -    959,357,100   -     -   
Pollution -     100,000    -    10,000,000     -     -   
Fidelity 1,000  25,000   -    -  2,000,000   -   
Cyber -     -      -    -  -     1,000,000   







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


26 


NOTE 9:  LEASE COMMITMENTS 


As of June 30, 2015, future lease payments under operating leases were as follows: 


Year Ending
June 30:


2016 39,074$       
2017 40,246         
2018 41,454         
2019 28,183         


Total Future Lease Payments 148,957$     


Rental expenditures were $38,124 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 


NOTE 10:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS 


In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other 
postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local 
governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This 
Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting 
and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing 
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating 
additional transparency.  


This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB 
Measurements by Agent Employer and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. This statement will 
require YECA to record a net OPEB liability related to its OPEB plan, as defined by the standard. This 
statement is effective for YECA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  







REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Unaudited) 







2014


Plan's proportion of the net pension liability 3.92100%


Plan's proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,379,173$    


Plan's covered-employee payroll 2,489,656$    


Plan's proportionate share of the net pension liability
 as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 95.56%


Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
 Plan's total pension liability 80.43%


* - GASB 68 was implemented in 2015 (2014 measurement period).


Schedule of YECA's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability


Last 10 Years*


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
27







2014 2015


Contractually required contribution 284,046$    292,497$    
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 284,046      292,497      


Contribution deficiency -$            -$            


YECA's covered-employee payroll 2,489,656$ 2,928,330$ 


Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 11.41% 9.99%


* - GASB 68 was implemented in 2015 (2014 measurement period).


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Schedule of YECA's Pension Contributions
Last 10 Years*


Required Supplementary Information


See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
28







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefit Plan 
June 30, 2015 


See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information. 
29 


Valuation Date


Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) 


Simplified Entry Age


Acturial 
Value of 
Assets


Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability 


(UAAL)
Funded 
Ratio


Annual Covered 
Payroll


UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Payroll


June 30, 2010 1,067,080$   -$   1,067,080$     0.0% 2,710,290$      39.4%
June 30, 2013 1,356,000     -  1,356,000   0.0% 2,243,000   60.5%







Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal 107,938$     107,938$     -$             (107,938)$    
State -               -               7,383           7,383           


Charges for services 5,316,820    5,316,820    5,326,277    9,457           
Use of money and property -               -               6,674           6,674           
Other -               -               126,420       126,420       


Total Revenues 5,424,758    5,424,758    5,466,754    41,996         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 3,769,762    3,769,762    3,574,405    195,357       
Services and supplies 1,325,192    1,325,192    1,357,879    (32,687)        


Debt service:
Principal 216,781       216,781       216,781       -               
Interest 192,670       192,670       192,670       -               


Capital outlay 643,779       643,779       620,109       23,670         
Contingencies 455,000       444,718       -               444,718       


Total Expenditures 6,603,184    6,592,902    5,961,844    631,058       


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures (1,178,426)   (1,168,144)   (495,090)      673,054       


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capital lease proceeds 660,779       650,497       -               (650,497)      


Changes in Fund Balance (517,647)      (517,647)      (495,090)      22,557         


Fund Balance - beginning of year 517,647       517,647       2,406,095    1,888,448    


Fund Balance - end of year -$             -$             1,911,005$  1,911,005$  


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015


Required Supplementary Information


See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
30







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


31 


NOTE 1:  SCHEDULE OF YECA’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION 
LIABILITY 


In 2015, there were no changes to the benefit terms or assumptions. 


NOTE 2:  SCHEDULE OF YECA’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 


The actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2015 were from the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013. 


Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial assumptions:
  Inflation 2.75%


  Salary increase Varies (1)


  Payroll growth 3.00% (2)


  Investment rate of return 7.50%


  Retirement age 2010 Experience Study (3)


  Mortality 2010 Experience Study (4)


(1) Depending on age, service, and type of employment.


(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation.


(3)


(4)


The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for 
the period from 1997 to 2007.


The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for 
the period from 1997 to 2007.  Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates 
include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the 
Society of Actuaries.


NOTE 3:  SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 


Because the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation was the first valuation prepared under the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 45, there is only historical information of two valuations.  Information from the 
three most recent valuations will be presented once available.   







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Notes to the Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


32 


NOTE 4:  BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 


YECA prepares and legally adopts a final budget on or before June 30 of each fiscal year.  YECA 
operations, commencing July 1, is governed by the proposed budget, adopted by the JPA Board of 
Directors in June of the prior year. 


After the budget is approved, the Executive Director is authorized to execute transfers between major 
budget units as long as the total expenditures for each budget unit remain unchanged.   


An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year on the modified accrual basis.  Additionally, 
encumbrance accounting is utilized to assure effective budgetary control.  Encumbrances outstanding at 
year-end represent the estimated amount of the expenditures ultimately to result if the unperformed 
contracts in process at year-end are completed or purchase commitments satisfied.  Such year-end 
encumbrances are reported as unassigned fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities 
because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year and included in the subsequent 
year's budget.  Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end and are subject to appropriation in the 
subsequent periods. 







OTHER REPORT 







www.mgocpa.com


Certified   
Public 
Accountants 


Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816


Sacramento


Walnut Creek


San Francisco


Oakland


Los Angeles


Century City


Newport Beach


San Diego


33 


Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 


Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 


Board of Directors  
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 


We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the general fund of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), as of and for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise YECA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 2016. 


Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered YECA’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control. 


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified.  However, as described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and a 
significant deficiency. 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings as item 2015-001 
to be a material weakness. 


A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of current year findings 
as item 2015-002 to be a significant deficiency. 







34 


Compliance and Other Matters 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YECA’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.    However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.   


YECA’s Response to Findings 


YECA’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of 
current year findings.  YECA’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 


Purpose of this Report 


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 


Sacramento, California 
March 29, 2016 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Schedule of Current Year Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


35 


Item 2015-001 – Prepaid Items 


Criteria: 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs related to services should be expended within the 
fiscal year in which the service takes place.  Costs related to future periods should be recorded as prepaid 
expenses/items. 


Condition: 
YECA did not record prepaid expenses/items for costs related to future fiscal years. 


Cause: 
YECA records disbursements as expenses/expenditures when paid and does not analyze at year-end for 
prepayments, thus prepaid expenses/items were not identified and reclassified as such. 


Effect: 
As a result of this condition, an audit adjustment increasing “Prepaid items” on the Balance Sheet and 
“Prepaid expense” on the Statement of Net Position by $189,813 was made. 


Recommendation: 
YECA should begin identifying and tracking the timeframes for which costs are for, and then analyzing 
them at year-end and adjusting for any portion that are for future fiscal years, thus improving the financial 
reporting process.  


Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA will book any prepays separately in a prepay account and expense it at the end of the year to 
account for the overlap of contract services between two fiscal years for amounts $5,000 and above. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Schedule of Current Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


36 


Item 2015-002 – General Ledger Account Activity 


Criteria: 
All transactions should be posted to the general ledger. 


Condition: 
Not all capital assets and long-term debt activity were posted to the general ledger.  Although YECA did 
have their other postemployment benefits (OPEB) actuarial valuation, YECA did not adjust the year-end 
net OPEB obligation in the general ledger.  And although YECA implemented GASB Statement No. 65 
in fiscal year 2013, deferred charges were still recorded in the general ledger.  Also, YECA did not post 
accrued interest, the change in compensated absences, or depreciation expense in the general ledger. 


Cause: 
YECA’s staff did review capital assets on hand at year-end to determine which ones needed to be added 
and which ones needed to be deleted from YECA’s capital assets listing and to determine depreciation 
expense for the year.  In addition, YECA’s staff did review compensated absences activity for the year. 
And although YECA staff did adjust the year-end capital assets balances in the general ledger, they 
neglected to post the depreciation expense and most of the long-term debt activity in the general ledger.   


Effect: 
As a result of this condition, audit adjustments needed to be made to correct the general ledger accounts 
to decrease capital assets for a net of $236,986, to increase net OPEB obligation for $248,562, to 
eliminate the deferred charges amount of $48,000, to add accrued interest of $22,761, and to increase 
compensated absences for $108. 


Recommendation: 
YECA should post capital assets and long-term debt activity to the general ledger at year-end, before the 
audit. 


Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA will work with Yolo County Financial Services, who maintains YECA’s accounting records, to 
create a year-end closeout to capture the above items. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Status of Prior Year Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


37 


Item 2014-001 – Prepaid Items 


Criteria: 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs related to services should be expensed within the 
fiscal year in which the service takes place.  Expenditures related to future periods should be recorded as 
a prepaid item. 


Condition: 
Expenditures related to fiscal year 2015 services were recorded as expenditures in fiscal year 2014. 


Cause: 
YECA records disbursements as expenditures when paid and does not analyze at year-end for 
prepayments, thus prepaid items were not identified and reclassified as such. 


Effect: 
As a result of this condition, an audit adjustment debiting “Prepaid items” on the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Net Position and crediting “Services and supplies” expenditures on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance and expenses on the Statement of Activities for 
$242,968 was made. 


Recommendation: 
YECA should begin identifying and tracking the timeframes for which expenditures are for, and then 
analyzing them at year-end and adjusting for any portion that are for future fiscal years, thus improving 
the financial reporting process.  


Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA will book any prepays separately in a prepay account and expense it at the end of the year to 
account for the overlap of contract services between two fiscal years. 


Status: 
YECA did not implement the recommendation, therefore this finding continues in the current year as 
finding 2015-001. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Status of Prior Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


38 


Item 2014-002 – Capital Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases 


Criteria: 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, costs directly related to the acquisition or construction of 
capital assets, should be capitalized and not expensed. In addition, capital assets that are being 
constructed, such as those that are financed by capital leases, are to be accounted for in construction in 
progress (CIP) until the projects have been significantly completed and have become operational. While 
those projects are being accounted for in CIP, no depreciation is to be taken. YECA defines capital assets 
as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. 


Condition: 
Transactions related to YECA’s Computer Aided Dispatch and Radio CIP projects were expensed.  In 
addition, other transactions related to the CIP projects were capitalized, however as equipment and 
depreciation was taken while the projects were begin constructed. 


Cause: 
YECA does not utilize primary general ledger accounts to record capital expenditure activity, thus costs 
incurred for capital activity were not identified and reclassified correctly as capital assets additions. 


Effect: 
As a result of this condition, a material audit adjustment debiting “capital assets” on the Statement of Net 
Position for a net of $1,840,287, crediting “services and supplies” expense on the Statement of Activities 
for $729,318, crediting “depreciation” expense on the Statement of Activities for $281,048, and crediting 
“net position – beginning of year” on the Statement of Activities for $829,921 was recorded.   


Recommendation: 
YECA should not only capitalize individual transactions that meet its capital assets definition as noted 
above, but should also capitalize all transactions related to construction projects. Note that during the 
period the projects are being constructed, depreciation should not be taken.  It’s only when the projects 
are substantially completed and placed into operation that depreciation should begin.  


Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA agrees with the finding and has taken corrective action to ensure all capital assets are identified in 
all transactions and construction projects when completed. 


Status: 
YECA accounted for capital assets acquired via capital leases appropriately this year, therefore this 
recommendation is considered implemented. 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Status of Prior Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 


39 


Item 2014-003 – General Ledger Account Activity 


Criteria: 
All transactions should be posted to the general ledger. 


Condition: 
Capital assets and long-term debt activity were not posted to the general ledger. 


Cause: 
Although YECA’s IT staff does review capital assets on hand at year-end to determine which ones need 
to be added and which ones need to be deleted from YECA’s capital assets listing and to determine 
depreciation expense for the year, YECA did not adjust the year-end capital assets balances in the general 
ledger.  In addition, although YECA did have their other postemployment benefits (OPEB) actuarial 
valuation, YECA did not adjust the year-end net OPEB obligation in the general ledger.  And although 
YECA implemented GASB Statement No. 65 last year, deferred charges were still recorded in the general 
ledger. 


Effect: 
As a result of this condition, audit adjustments needed to be made to correct the general ledger accounts 
to increase capital assets for a net of $9,791, to increase net OPEB obligation for $179,706, and eliminate 
the deferred charges amount of $48,000. 


Recommendation: 
YECA should post capital assets and long-term debt activity to the general ledger at year-end, before the 
audit. 


Management Response and Corrective Action: 
YECA will provide capital assets activity booked into our general ledger system prior to the beginning of 
the audit along with the long term debt activity. 


Status: 
YECA did not implement the recommendation, therefore this finding continues in the current year as 
finding 2015-002. 









